
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, MARCH 18, 2021 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order   
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
 
III. Approval of Agenda 
 
IV. Approval of Minutes from the February 18, 2021 Meeting 
 
V. Public Comments 
 
VI. Steering Committee Report-Chair 

1. Firework Grant Award Recommendations 
 
VII. Budget & Finance Report-Budget & Finance Committee Chair 
 
VIII. Grants & Local Public Relations Report-Grants & Local Public Relations Chair 

1. Amend Event Grant Guidelines/Application 
2. Event Grant Award Recommendations 

 
IX. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates 
     
X. Old Business 

 
XI. New Business 
 
XII. Board Member Comments 
  
XIII. Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting 

 
XIV. Adjournment 
 
      
 



	

February 18, 2021 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2021 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

MANTEO, NC 27954 
 

 
ATTENDING:   
In-Person: Jeff Pruitt, Chair; Ervin Bateman, Treasurer; Bambos Charalambous, and Leo Holland.  
 
Via GoToMeeting: Tim Cafferty, Vice-Chair; Doug Brindley, Jamie Chisholm, Ivy Ingram, Karen 
Loopman-Davis, Donna Peele, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  
 
EXCUSED ABSENCE: Webb Fuller, Secretary; Monica Thibodeau, Assistant Treasurer; and Bobby 
Owens. 
 
STAFF:  
Lee Nettles, Executive Director (in person) 
Diane Bognich, Director of Administration (GoToMeeting) 
Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist (GoToMeeting) 
Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager (GoToMeeting) 
 
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Via GoToMeeting: Brad Carey, First Flight Adventure Park; John Griffin, Chicamacomico Historical 
Association; and Philip Ruckle, The Coastland Times.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed 
by a moment of silence.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Holland moved to approve the agenda. Second by Mr. Charalambous. 
There was no discussion.  
 

Yes: Ervin Bateman, Doug Brindley, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, Leo 
Holland, Ivy Ingram, Karen Loopman-Davis, Donna Peele, and Jeff Pruitt.  
 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0).  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Mr. Bateman moved to approve the meeting minutes from January 21, 
2021 meeting.   Second by Mr. Holland. There was no discussion.  
 

Yes: Ervin Bateman, Doug Brindley, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, Leo 
Holland, Ivy Ingram, Karen Loopman-Davis, Donna Peele, and Jeff Pruitt.  
 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0).  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There were no public comments made nor written comments received.  
 
 
 
 
 



	

February 18, 2021 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

STEERING COMMITTEE:  Lee Nettles reviewed the intentions behind the Long-Term 
Unappropriated Guidelines.  Mr. Cafferty moved to accept the Long-Term Unappropriated Guidelines as 
presented. Second by Mr. Charalambous.  
 

Yes: Ervin Bateman, Doug Brindley, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, Leo 
Holland, Ivy Ingram, Karen Loopman-Davis, Donna Peele, and Jeff Pruitt.  
 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0).  

 
Lee Nettles reviewed the request from Chicamacomico Historical Association for funds from the Long-
Term Unappropriated line item in the amount of $22,610.00 to repair water damage to the floor and 
adding historically correct “storm” doors to the 1874 Station.   Mr. Bateman moved to award $22,610 
from the Long-Term Unappropriated line item to Chicamacomico for these items. Mr. Charalambous 
seconded. During discussion, Mr. Holland asked about the contingency budget in the request.  Lee Nettles 
responded that Chicamacomico Historical Association had the contingency budget in case other repairs 
discovered while the floors were being repaired. There was no further discussion.  
 

Yes: Ervin Bateman, Doug Brindley, Tim Cafferty, Bambos Charalambous, Jamie Chisholm, Leo 
Holland, Ivy Ingram, Karen Loopman-Davis, Donna Peele, and Jeff Pruitt.  
 
No: None.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0).  

 
BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Mr. Bateman reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts 
received.  Receipts for fiscal year 2020-2021 are up 12.06% compared to 2019-2020 actual receipts. 
 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES: Lee Nettles: 

• Reviewed the February meeting of the Soundside Ad Hoc Committee 
• Noted that the Social Media campaign was halted in January but is in full swing now 
• Reviewed the internet, fulfillment, and visitation figures 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  Ms. Peele asked if the Board would consider speaking with Dare County Department 
of Health and Human Services Director Sheila Davies about moving the hospitality workers up a tier for 
the COVID-19 vaccine due to the anticipated early Spring visitors. Lee Nettles noted that he could ask, 
and Ervin Bateman stated that the Commissioners were speaking with state representatives today about 
this, and that the state health director was aware of this matter as well.  
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  The Chair and Ms. Chisholm thanked staff for their work. Mr. 
Brindley noted that the home sales were on the rise and this would take some rental properties off the 
market and have an impact on occupancy receipts.  
 
SET DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING:  The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 
March 18, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. in Curtis Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
Administrative Office, Manteo, NC (virtual and in-person options available). 
 
Mr. Holland moved to adjourn the meeting. Second by Mr. Charalambous. There was no objection and 
the meeting adjourned at 9:50 a.m. 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 





















































1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



THE OUTER BANKS PROJECT 
 
PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: March 2021 
 
2021 BEST LISTS  
 
TravelAndLeisure.com | March 2021 “21 Babymoon Ideas for Every Type of Traveler: Outer Banks, 
NC” Aaron pitched contributor Judy Koutsky on why the OBX would make the perfect spot. She 
may visit this summer in partnership with the Outer Banks Visitors Bureau. https://bit.ly/3qsqhXT 
 
SouthernLiving.com | March 2021 “The South’s Best Beach Towns 2021: Nags Head, NC” According 
to author Betsy Cribb, “Sunseekers have flocked to this stretch of the Outer Banks since the 1830’s 
when it was established as the state’s first tourist colony.” It is one of 11 communities on the list. 
http://bit.ly/30s9pGd 
 
TravelPulse.com | March 2021 “2021 Safest Destinations in the US – Outer Banks, NC” 
TravelPulse.com reaches 340.7 unique monthly visitors. https://bit.ly/3sIHOwA 
 
TravelPulse.com | March 2021 “Top 15 US Beaches for 2021 Spring Break Travel” TravelPulse.com 
reaches 340.7 unique monthly visitors. http://bit.ly/38lOqsT 
 
TripsToDiscover.com | March 2021 “14 Spring Break Destinations That Are Still Open for 2021: 
Outer Banks, NC. The digital magazine has a 1.6 Million readership. http://bit.ly/2O8VMJL 
 
VIRTUAL MEDIA MARKETPLACE 
 
African American Experience of Northeast North Carolina – Lee and Aaron are serving on a board 
of regional tourism professionals, community advocates and scholars working together on the 
creation of a new five county heritage trail, promoting the contributions and culture of African 
Americans in Dare, Currituck, Chowan, Camden and Pasquotank County. The African American 
Experience of Northeast North Carolina is on schedule to go live in June 2021, and will feature 
visitor opportunities in each county to explore sites such as the Pea Island Cookhouse Museum, 
Island Farm and Fort Raleigh National Historic Site with its Freedman’s Colony exhibit along with 
other sites across the Outer Banks and North Carolina mainland. 
 
EARNED MEDIA – PUBLISHED  
 
YourTimeToFly.com | March 2021 “11 Unique Destinations for Girls Weekend Getaways: Outer 
Banks, NC” Aaron met with editor Tamara Gruber at IMM 2021 virtual conference this year and 
discussed opportunities to work together in promotion of the destination.  
 
EARNED MEDIA – IN MARKET VISITS 
 
Hollie Schultz | April 2021 –  YouTuber Hollie Schultz and her Baby Gizmo influencer family are 
returning to the Outer Banks as part of a summer travel series and content development 
partnership. The Baby Gizmo YouTube channel boasts 333K subscribers and 176 Million views.  
 
Larry Olmstead | April 2021 – Cigar Aficionado magazine covering Outer Banks fishing scene. 
Contributing author and food columnist to several pubs. NY Times, Wall Street Journal and 
Washington Post Bestselling Author. Also covering OBX Taste of the Beach event. 
 



THE OUTER BANKS PROJECT 
 
Beverly Hurley | May 2021 – Triangle Gardener magazine. Aaron is working with editor and 
entrepreneur Beverly Hurley on a discovery visit to the Elizabethan Gardens and Mother Vine on 
Roanoke Island as part of an Outer Banks focus piece earmarked to be published in early summer in 
the magazine and online at GardenDestinations.com 
 
Dennis Lennox | May 2021 – Christian Post. Aaron met Dennis at last year’s International Media 
Marketplace event. The Christian Post (1.9 million uvm) presents national and international 
coverage of current events affecting and involving Christian leaders, church bodies, ministries, 
mission agencies, schools, businesses, and the general Christian public. Dennis also contributes to 
The Epoch Times (7.6 million uvm). 
 
EARNED MEDIA – IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
Travel + Leisure online | TBD 2021 – Aaron is working with writer Sucheta Rawal pitching for a 
Travel + Leisure editorial on best small towns in the South. Sucheta visited in 2020 after the OBX 
reopened and has written a few articles already.  
 
Southern Travel + Lifestyles | May/June 2021 – The PR team is contributing to the magazine’s 
Explore the Outdoors and North Carolina sections in both digital and print.  
 
SportsEvents Magazine | Feb 2021 – We’re working for inclusion in a roundup of destination 
facilities. 
 
Rachel Ray Magazine | TBD 2021 – We’re being featured in a roundup of beach destinations with 
compelling backstories. 
 
 
NEW Blog Posts  – OuterBanks.org 
  
“12 on 12: Iconic Stops along Highway 12 on the Outer Banks” by Jason Frye. The Outer Banks 
Visitors Bureau team partnered with accomplished guidebook author Jason Frye to feature some of 
the quintessential wayfinding spots along the OBX’s most storied route for the benefit of the new 
wave of visitors and potential customers considering an Outer Banks trip. http://bit.ly/3rALYGA  
 
“Hitting the Sweet Spot” Veteran golf writer Bill Kamenjar partnered with the Outer Banks Visitors 
Bureau on this guide to the various course offerings in Dare County with the nuances in playability 
and design history found at Duck Woods Country Club, Nags Head Golf Links and Sea Scape Golf 
Club. Bill made the rounds to score a hole in one with this how-to.  http://bit.ly/3t2MNIx 
 











3/3/2021 2021 Travel Restrictions: Safest Destinations in the US | TravelPulse

https://www.travelpulse.com/gallery/destinations/2021-travel-restrictions-safest-destinations-in-the-us.html?image=8 1/2

 2021 Travel Restrictions:
Safest Destinations in the US

For more information on 
For more 

 FEATURED VIDEO

Palladium Hotel Group:
Riviera Maya Awaits
You!

LATEST OPINIONS AND BLOGS

Grand Kosher
Occasions

Why Travelers
Should Get the

35

Outer Banks, North Carolina

8/16






	March 18, 2021 Agenda
	Minutes 21821
	Fireworks Recommendations
	Budget & Finance Report
	SKM_C75921031015030
	SKM_C75921031014541
	SKM_C75921031014540
	SKM_C75921031014530

	Amend Event Grant Guidelines
	Event_Grant_Recommend
	Inquiry Dashboard
	2021 Public_Relations
	Mar 2021 Board Packet
	Screen Shot 2021-03-09 at 2.41.48 PM
	Screen Shot 2021-03-09 at 2.42.17 PM
	babymoon
	Screen Shot 2021-03-09 at 3.16.07 PM
	2021 Travel Restrictions_ Safest Destinations in the US _ TravelPulse
	Screen Shot 2021-03-09 at 3.21.09 PM
	Screen Shot 2021-03-09 at 4.15.28 PM




